CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH MINUTES

CO DE City Commission Chambers
301 S. Ridgewood Ave., Daytona Beach, FL 32115

ENFORCEMENT

Members: Weegie Kuendig, Chairman; Turner Hymes, Vice-
BOARD Chairman; Neil Harrington, Karen Robey, Valoree McLean,
Josh Fogarty & Bradford Gonzales

September 12, 2019

Members present:

Mrs. Weegie Kuendig, Chairman
Mrs. Turner Hymes, Vice-Chairman
Mr. Neil Harrington

Ms. Valoree McLean

Ms. Karen Robey

Mr. Bradford Gonzales

Mr. Charles Cino, Esquire, Board Attorney
Staff present:

Mr. Anthony Jackson, Esq. Assistant City Attorney
Ms. Aimee Hampton, Senior Paralegal

Officer Steve Jessmer, Daytona Beach Police Department
Mr. Steve Alderman, Code Inspector

Mr. Tom Clig, Code Inspector

Mr. Mike Fitzgerald, Code Inspector

Mr. Danny Garcia, Code Inspector

Mr. Jerome McCoy, Rental Inspector

Mr. Mark Jones, Rental Inspector

Mr. Clifford Recanzone lll, Code Inspector

Ms. Sara Kirk, Code Inspector

Mr. John Stenson, Lead Code Inspector

Mr. Charles Smarr, Audio/Video

Ms. June Barnes, Board Secretary

Chairman

Approval of Minutes by: /‘-{a/w; é//u'\’-';(r [Ogeﬁgu/ ‘Kue palp

The Chairman called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m.

Mrs. Kuendig welcomed new member Bradford Gonzales to the Board.

Ms. Barnes called the roll and Mr. Fogarty was absent. Motion was made to excuse Mr.
Fogarty by Mr. Harrington with Mrs. Hymes seconding. Motion approved 6-0.

Page |



Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes
September 12, 2019

Mrs. Kuendig asked if the minutes of the August 8, 2019 meeting had been read and asked for
any corrections. There were none. Mr. Harrington motioned to approve the minutes with Mrs.
Hymes seconding. Motion approved (6-0).

Mrs. Kuendig asked for disclosure of Ex Parte Communications and there was none.

Mrs. Kuendig announced the procedure for the meeting and asked if there were any
announcements and Ms. Barnes announced the following cases.

CASE #9-CEB 08-19-160 - David & Suzanne Jeckovich is cited for failure to correct violations
of City Code Ch. 26 Sec. 26-294, at 825 Lewis Dr. Violation(s) — Failure to obtain Rental License
(RTL). First Notified — 2/20/2019

Withdrawn

CASE # 22- CEB 09-19-198 - William F Cutrone is cited for failure to correct violations of The
Land Development Code, Art. 6 Sec. 6.19.A.3; Art. 6 Sec. 6.19.A.4; Art. 9 Sec. 9.2.A (Ref. FBC
Supp. IPMC 304.7), at 216 Zelda Blvd.

Violation(s) — Roof tarped, roof leaking, overgrown property.

First Notified — 7/1/2019

Compliance 9/5/2019
Mrs. Barnes swore in members of the staff who will be testifying.
Mrs. Kuendig announced the procedure for the meeting.

LR -1 CEB 04-17-20 - 240 DeSoto Street - Irvin White is cited for failure to correct violations
of The Land Development Code, Art. 9 Sec. 9.2.A. (Ref. FBC Supp IPMC 302.8); Art. 6 Sec.
6.19.A.3; Art. 6 Sec. 6.19.A.4.). Violation(s) — Junk vehicle; outside storage of junk and debris;
structure is in disrepair. First Notified — 12/7/2016. Order Imposing Fine-Lien of $100.00 per
day effective November 9, 2017. Compliance 1/18/2018. $7,000.00 plus $24.00 recording
costs = $7,024.00.

Mr. Irvin White came forward and affirmed to tell the truth.

Anthony Jackson, Assistant City Attorney, stated the City is willing to do a substantial reduction.
He stated the property was in poor state and he was upset because he couldn't do a duplex and
had to do a single and it did not meet the 65% ruling and had to be demolished. He stated the
respondent met with his contractor and the contractor did not show up. He stated he came back
before the Board and the City requested a fine. He stated after they made the request, the Chief
Building Official stood up and said he had met with them and they hired another contractor who
gave them instructions on what they needed but a fine was imposed. He stated he cannot
demolish the building until he gets a contractor and the Building Official was saying he wouldn't
give him a permit until the building is demolished. He stated the permit was issued in January
or December and 15 days later the property was demolished. He stated he was diligent once
he had the permit and the City would not object to waiving the fine.

Page 2



Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes
September 12, 2019

Mr. Gonzales stated in his letter of hardship he quoted a statute that he felt was not met by the
City and he believes the law should be reasonable and acknowledges Mr. Jackson’s statement
that an error that was made on the City side.

Mr. Jackson stated that he did not acknowlege that an error was made on the City side.

Mr. Harrington stated he did not like the letter which made implications that the Code
Enforcement or Board is prejudice against him.

There was discussion regarding Mr. Harrington’s comments.
Mr. Cino stated the only thing before the Board is the fine and it can be litigated on appeal.
Mr. White stated he wanted to read the letter.

Mrs. Kuendig read the letter and stated the information was in the lien review request except for
the septic abatement and abandonment permit. She stated they are all City issues and the
Board sees that he is in compliance and appreciates that. She stated the City has recommended
they lower the amount but also remembers how much time they spent on it.

Mrs. Kuendig asked for motion to reduce the amount of the fine to $1500 payable within 30
days. Ms. Robey motioned the same. Motion died for lack of second.

Mrs. Hymes motioned the fine be reduced to $800 and Mr. Gonzales seconded. Motion
approved 5-1 with Mrs. Kuendig dissenting.

Mr. White stated he had every permit that was reviewed by Ron Roberts between December 7
and December 27, 2017. He stated his permit was submitted on December 11 but there was
no approval until January. He stated the permits required multiple activities and were sitting
for a month with nothing being done. He stated he didn’t think it was fair that while he was
being fined his permit was sitting on someone’s desk.

Mr. Kuendig asked for motion to reconsider the previous ruling. Mrs. McLean motioned the
same with Ms. Robey seconding. Motion approved (6-0).

Mr. White stated he spent $10,000 to renovate the building and there was a hurricane while
they were doing it. He stated they still weren't at the 65% and they came and said it was
sitting too close to the property line. He stated there is another building by his office that is too
close to his property line and he struggled to get the City out there to address it. He stated he
did not understand how the lien became $15,000. He stated his daughter received an email
stating that it was reduced to $7,500 and he didn't know what that was for. He stated he
obtained letters from a structural engineer stating that the building was sound and could be
remodeled. He stated he was trying to give the city low income options and build the tax base.
He asked the Board to reduce the fine.

Mr. Jackson stated he was an advocate for fairness and based on his review of the records he
does not believe the Board did anything wrong.

BOARD ACTION: Mrs. Hymes made a motion to waive the fine. Mr. Gonzales seconded the
same. Motion carried 4-2 with Mr. Harrington and Mrs. Kuendig voting no.

Page 3



Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes
September 12, 2019

CASE # 1 - CEB 09-18-109 - Dennis L and Lucinda A Trovinger is cited for failure to correct
violations of The Land Development Code, Art. 3 Sec. 3.4.S (Ref. FBC Supp. IPMC 105.1), at
1212 Sunset Cir. Violation(s) — No permit for carport. First Notified — 6/5/2018.

Mr. Dennis Trovinger came forward and was sworn in.

Mr. Jackson stated Inspector Clig reports the permits were approved in the last few days. He
stated they are waiting for them to be finaled and is asking to amend to the next cutoff.

Mrs. Kuendig asked the respondent if a month is long enough.

Mr. Trovinger stated he did not know.

Mr. Jackson stated they are willing to recommend the November cutoff.

Mrs. Hymes asked the respondent if he said he did not have a contractor yet.

Mr. Trovinger stated he did not. He stated they told him not to do anything until he has the
permit.

BOARD ACTION: Mrs. Kuendig asked for motion to amend the previous order of non-
compliance and allow the respondents until the November 6, 2019 cutoff to come into
compliance or be returned to a subsequent meeting for consideration of a fine up to $1000.
Motion was made by Mr. Gonzales. Ms. McLean seconded the same and motion was
approved 6-0.

CASE # 2 - CEB 06-19-125 - Imogene C. & Fred H. Gilmour Sr. is cited for failure to correct
violations of The Land Development Code, Art. 3 Sec. 3.4.S.1; Art. 6 Sec. 6.19.A.3; Art. 6 Sec.
6.19.A.4; Art. 9 Sec. 9.2.A (Ref. FBC Supp. IPMC 304.7, 304.13), at 122 Springwood Dr.
Violation(s) — Working outside of the scope of the Business Tax Receipt (BTR), damaged roof,
extending building without permits, boarded window and dirt and grime on the siding. First
Notified — 3/19/2019.

Jim Pickens, Esq. came forward.
Mr. Jackson stated Inspector Recanzone reports the property remains in non-compliance and

that he has been in communication with the respondents but there were delays because of

preparations for the storm and there is still work to be done. He stated staff is asking to amend
to the next cutoff.

Mr. Cino asked if there was money in the estate to make the repairs.
Mr. Pickens stated the family is paying for it.
Mr. Recanzone stated what remains to be done.

Mr. Pickens stated the demolition permit had expired on the shed and the contractor needs to
reinstate it and that storm prep delayed repairs.

Page 4



Code Enforcement Board Meeting Minutes
September 12, 2019

BOARD ACTION: Mrs. Kuendig asked for motion to amend the previous order of non-
compliance and allow the respondents until the October 2, 2019 cutoff to come into
compliance or be returned to a subsequent meeting for consideration of a fine up to $1000.
Motion was made by Mr. Harrington. Ms. McLean seconded the same and motion was
approved 6-0.

CASE # 3 - CEB 03-19-66 - Christopher J. Higqins is cited for failure to correct violations of
The Land Development Code, Art. 3 Sec. 3.4.S.1, at 175 Centennial Ln. Violation(s) — Driveway
installed without a permit. First Notified — 11/30/2018.

Respondent was not present.

Mr. Jackson stated Inspector Recanzone is requesting to amend to the November cutoff. He
stated the contractor has an issue with the licensing board and the City has become involved.

Mr. Recanzone stated the owner, with City assistance, is taking the contractor to the licensing
board and asking for the repairs to be done or his license to be revoked within the next 2 months.

Mr. Jackson stated the City is asking for the contractor to replace the City sidewalk and is
involved as an enforcement issue.

There was discussion held as to why the City is involved.
Ms. Robey asked why if the owner can pull his own permit.
Mr. Jackson stated he did not know.

Mr. Cino stated it is the property owner’s responsibility to solve the problem. He explained they
took out the City sidewalk to put in the pavers and the City want it put back.

Mr. Recanzone stated the permit had expired and they needed to apply for new permit.

Mr. Gonzales stated he thought the Board’s issue was separate from the contractor’s issue.
Mr. Jackson stated the permit can't be reissued to the contractor on record. He stated he could
bring someone from Permits & Licensing to testify if needed. He explained the permit process
and stated he did not know enough of what needs to be done to correct the issue.

Mrs. Kuendig stated that was a year ago.

Mr. Jackson stated the respondent is doing everything the City has asked him to do.

Mr. Recanzone stated he has not spoken to the respondent since he’s been working with Permits
& Licensing. He stated the driveway was installed in 2011 and the Code issue is that the permit

is expired.

There was additional discussion on why the permit was not finaled, could not be re-issued and
when the original permit was issued.

Page 5






